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COMPANY WEBSITES
http://www. TeleEye.com
http://www. TeleEye.com.hk
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http://www. TeleEye.net.cn
http://www. TeleEye.cn
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http://www.TeleEye.sg
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http://www. TeleEye.net.bd
http://www. TeleEye.com.lk
http://www. TeleEye.lk
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http://www. T IER cn
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Prof. CHAN Chok Ki

Mr. HO Ka Ho

Mr. CHOI Wai Yip

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. HO Ka Ho

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. YU Hon To, David

Prof. SIU Wan Chi

Prof. CHING Pak Chung, BBS
Dr. CHAN Cheung Fat

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Prof. SIU Wan Chi

Prof. CHING Pak Chung, BBS

Dr. CHAN Cheung Fat

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Prof. SIU Wan Chi

Prof. CHING Pak Chung, BBS

Prof. CHAN Chok Ki

PRINCIPAL BANKER
Hang Seng Bank Limited
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Innovation is the key to success for a technology company. This is
especially true in the fast developing video surveillance market where the
popular analog video systems today will soon be replaced by the newly
developed superior High Definition (“HD”) video systems, manufacturers

are competing to become the technology leader.

I am delighted to announce that TeleEye after years of research has
launched all the essential elements of the TeleEye HD video surveillance
family products, namely, HD fixed cameras, HD speed dome cameras,
HD video recording servers, HD video management application and
HD video recording software for large scale redundancy recording
application. With the complete lineup of HD products, the sales revenue
in HD area grew healthily. Our development effect in this area will

continue and more HD products will be launched in the coming year.

The global economic slowdown weakened the demand for video
surveillance products worldwide. Corporate customers were delaying
and reducing their spending on security products. The resulting intensive
price competition exerted great pressure on our profit margin. Our
sales revenue dropped in many overseas markets. On the other hand,
the negative real interest rate, the introduction of minimum wage and
shortage manpower and commercial space in Hong Kong drove up
inflation and our expenses. As a result, we recorded a deficit in this

financial year.

With our range of newly developed products, we are well positioned
to capture new business opportunities when the economic situation
improves. We will further improve our operation efficiency and provide
better services to our customers. Meanwhile, we focus on growing the
sales of new HD products by conducting intensive marketing and training
programs through our sales channels. In view of the uncertainty of the
global economy ahead, we will constantly review our financial situation

and will consider strengthening it when necessary.

In this time of difficulty, I whole-heartedly thank our shareholders,

business partners and the TeleEye team for their continual support.

Prof. Chan Chok Ki
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 14 September 2012
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VT ) i

For the year ended 30 June 2012, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$37,425,000, representing a decrease of about 18% as
compared with the turnover of about HK$45,693,000 of the preceding
year. Loss attributable to the owners of the Company for the year ended
30 June 2012 amounted to approximately HK$6,182,000 as compared
with a profit of approximately HK$1,206,000 attributable to the owners
of the Company for the same period in last year. Basic loss per share for
the year ended 30 June 2012 was 68.39 HK cents (2011: 13.36 HK cents

of basic earnings per share).

As a result of the Group’s tight control on overhead costs, overall
operating costs during the year slightly increased to HK$23,504,000 as
compared to HK$22,468,000 in the previous year. The Group’s financial

position remains strong with substantial liquidity.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the beginning of 2012, the Group launched the GX series of HD
Video Recording Servers to complete its HD video surveillance product
line. The sales of TeleEye HD products grew substantially since then.
The sales revenue of HD products in the fourth quarter of this financial
year represented about a quarter of total sales revenue of this quarter
as compared to only 2% achieved in the corresponding period of the
previous year. The drop in sales revenue recorded this year was mainly
in the sales of analog video surveillance products under fierce price

competition and weak market demand.

Our marketing and sales team actively promoted the new HD products
through activities such as exhibitions, product launching events,
seminars, workshops, direct electronic mailings, advertisements and
publicities. Many reference stories on the usage of TeleEye HD products
were disseminated through our overseas channels. Growth in the sales
of HD products was encouraging given the poor economic situation this

year.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Asia

As the social unrest in Middle East settled down, business in Asia as
a whole remained stable. Turnover for Asia (inclusive of Hong Kong,
Singapore, Middle East and other Asian countries) as a whole for the
year ended 30 June 2012 was approximately HK$22,658,000 as compared
to about HK$22,584,000 achieved in the preceding year. It accounted for
61% (2011: 49%) of the Group’s turnover.

Europe

The worsening of the sovereignty debt crisis in Europe seriously affected
our business in this region. Turnover for Europe for the year ended 30
June 2012 dropped by 42% to approximately HK$6,540,000 (2011:
HK$11,336,000). It accounted for 17% (2011: 25%) of the Group’s

turnover.

Africa

Business in Africa mainly came from South Africa and Mauritius.
Currency fluctuation and fierce price competition hurt our sales in
the region. Turnover for Africa for this year decreased by 30% to
approximately HK$6,713,000 (2011: HK$9,656,000). It accounted for
18% (2011: 21%) of the Group’s turnover.

Others

Other geographic segments mainly included the Americas and Australia.
It has contributed to about 4% (2011: 5%) of the Group’s total turnover
this year, which amounted to approximately HK$1,514,000 (2011:
HK$2,117,000).

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

During the year, we have launched three models of TeleEye GX HD
video recording servers, six models of TeleEye MX HD cameras
and their network accessories to complete our line up of HD video
surveillance products. The GX series incorporates a patented video
technology developed in-house. Using the TeleEye GX together with
TeleEye MX HD cameras, customers can easily implement a fully digital

HD video surveillance system.

TeleEye MX763 HD camera with our special “hacker-resistant”
technology was selected by the renowned United Kingdom (“UK”)
Judging Panel to be one of the top six finalists in the “Camera of
the year” award organised by IFSEC 2012, the premier exhibition of
professional security equipment. Once again, TeleEye is recognised as a

pioneer in innovative technology for video surveillance.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VT ) i

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The prolonged poor economy in major developed countries will unlikely
be improved soon while excess liquidity in Hong Kong is driving up
inflation. The situation will continue to be challenging for export-

oriented business.

With initial encouraging result in TeleEye HD product line, we will
maintain our research and development effort and launch more HD
products in order to further enrich our HD product line. We will build
up and maintain a comprehensive product line in HD video surveillance.
Furthermore, we will strengthen our control on sales channels and
improve our operation efficiency and customer service. With our
dedicated team, we are cautiously optimistic about the Group’s business

in the coming year.

DIVIDENDS

The Board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) does not
recommend the payment of dividend for the year ended 30 June 2012
(2011: Nil).

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30 June 2012, the Group employed 46 (2011: 44) full time
employees in Hong Kong and 12 (2011: 12) full time employees in
China and overseas offices. The Group’s staff costs, including directors’
emoluments, employees’ salaries and retirement benefits schemes
contributions amounted to approximately HK$17,061,000 (2011:
HK$17,135,000).

Employees are remunerated in accordance with individual’s responsibility
and performance, which remain competitive with the prevailing market
rates. Other fringe benefits such as medical insurance, retirement benefits
schemes and discretionary bonus are offered to all employees. Share
options are granted at the Directors’ discretion and under the terms and

conditions of share option schemes.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
RATIO

The Group mainly used its internal resources to finance its operations
during the year. The Group had bank balances, deposits and cash of
approximately HK$14,431,000 as at 30 June 2012 (30 June 2011:
HK$15,719,000). The Group’s gearing ratio, as a percentage of bank and
other borrowings and long term debt over total assets, as at 30 June 2012
was 0% (30 June 2011: 0%).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group did not have any borrowings during the year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
The Group did not enter into any new significant investment during the

year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES
The Group did not make any material acquisitions and disposal of

subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

CHARGE ON ASSETS
As at 30 June 2012, the Group did not have any charge on its assets (30
June 2011: Nil).

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Up to the current moment, the Group does not have any other plan for
material investments or capital assets.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES
AND RELATED HEDGES

During the year under review, the Group’s transactions were substantially
denominated in either Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars and
British Pounds. The Group did not use any financial instruments for
hedging purposes (30 June 2011: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 June 2012, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities (30
June 2011: Nil).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT  #3 K4 P A B fdi/r

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Prof. Chan Chok Ki, aged 57, is the founder and Chief Executive
Officer of TeleEye Holdings Limited and an adjunct professor of The
City University of Hong Kong (“City University”). Prior to managing
TeleEye Group on a full-time basis in 2001, Prof. Chan had lectured at
the City University for fifteen years. He has published extensively in
signal and image processing fields and has received numerous awards
including the IEEE Third Millennium Award in 2000. In 1996, the EDN
ASIA Magazine also named him an “EDN ASIA Innovator” for his
contributions in image compression research. TeleEye Group has also
won numerous awards in product innovation and business areas. Prof.
Chan is a council member of the Hong Kong Productivity Council and
an elected member of Election Committee for the 2012 Hong Kong Chief

Executive Election.

Dr. Ma Chi Kit, aged 44, is a founder and the Chief Marketing Officer
of the Group. He has extensive knowledge on digital signal processing
and telecommunications technologies. He is presently responsible for
formulation and implementation of marketing strategies, product pricing
and positioning, and strategic management of channel distribution for the

Group.

Dr. Ma is a member in the executive committee and a sub-committee

Chairman of The Hong Kong Security Association.

Dr. Ma obtained his bachelor’s degree with first class honours and a PhD

degree in electronic engineering from the City University.

Mr. Ho Ka Ho, aged 40, is a founder and the Engineering Director of the
Group. He is in charge of the engineering department of the Group and is
responsible for product design, quality control, research and development
of the Group. Mr. Ho has expertise in computer architecture, software

engineering and digital signal processing.

Mr. Ho obtained his bachelor of engineering degree in computer
engineering with first class honours and master of science degree in

electronic engineering from the City University.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat, aged 54, is a founder and a research and
development consultant of the Group, responsible for spearheading the
research and development team on a part-time basis with particular focus
on product design and development. Dr. C.F. Chan is a research veteran

in the digital signal processing and speech compression technology.

Dr. C.F. Chan is presently an associate professor of the Department of
Electronic Engineering at the City University. He is also a Director of
Signal Communications Holdings Limited and Signal Communications

Limited, both are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

In 1998, he was named “EDN Asia Innovator” by the EDN Asia

Magazine for his contribution in speech compression technology.

He received all his bachelor, master and PhD degrees in electronic

engineering from The University of Essex, England.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Hon To, David, aged 64, is an independent (“Independent”)
non-executive (“Non-Executive”) Director of the Company who was
appointed in January 2007. Mr. Yu is the Vice Chairman of MCL
Partners Limited, a Hong Kong-based financial advisory and investment
firm. He was formerly a partner of an international accounting firm with
extensive experience in corporate finance. Mr. Yu is a fellow member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Currently, he is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the following companies listed on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange: China Datang Corporation Renewable
Power Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1798), China Renewable Energy Investment
Limited (stock code: 987), Great China Holdings Limited (stock code:
141), Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1169), Media
Chinese International Limited (which is also listed in Malaysia; Hong
Kong stock code: 685, Malaysia stock code: 5090), One Media Group
Limited (stock code: 426), Playmates Holdings Limited (stock code:
635), Sateri Holdings Limited (stock code: 1768), Synergis Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2340), and VXL Capital Limited (stock code: 727).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Prof. Siu Wan Chi, aged 62, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
who was appointed in September 2000. He is presently Chair Professor
of the Department of Electronic and Information Engineering and
Director of the Centre for Signal Processing, The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He was the Head of the same department and Dean of
Engineering Faculty between 1994 and 2002.

Prof. Siu has held numerous public offices in the academic field
including member of editorial board of renowned journals in the United
States and the People’s Republic of China, general chair of world-
class international conferences, and Chairman of academic/professional
assessment panels. Prof. Siu obtained his master of philosophy degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, and the PhD degree from
Imperial College of Science, Technology and Medicine, University of

London, United Kingdom.

Prof. Ching Pak Chung, BBS, aged 58, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director who was appointed in October 2004. Prof. Ching is
presently Pro-Vice-Chancellor and Director of the Shun Hing Institute
of Advanced Engineering of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
(“CUHK”). He was elected Dean of Engineering from 1998 till end of
2003. Prof. Ching pursued his studies at the University of Liverpool of
United Kingdom. He received his bachelor’s degree (first class honors)
and doctoral degree in 1977 and 1981 respectively. Then, he continued
his research at School of Electrical Engineering of the University of
Bath and was back to Hong Kong in 1982, when he started teaching
at the Department of Electronic Engineering of the then Hong Kong
Polytechnic. In 1984, Prof. Ching joined the Department of Electronic
Engineering of CUHK and was promoted to Chair Professor in 1999.

Prof. Ching has all along participated actively in various professional
activities. Besides serving in different capacities for the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, and the Institute of Electrical and Electronic
Engineers, he was an elected Council Member of the Institution of
Electrical Engineers between 2002 and 2005. Prof. Ching also devotes
his time on public services. He was a member of the Consumer Council,
Chairman of the Hong Kong Accreditation Advisory Board, a member
of the Electrical Safety Advisory Committee, a Council member of the
Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency, a member of the Copyright
Tribunal and a panel member of the Research Grants Council of Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (“SAR”). He is currently Chairman
of the Hong Kong Council for Testing and Certification, member of the
Steering Committee on Innovation and Technology, and member of the
Greater Pearl River Delta Business Council. In 2010, he was awarded the
Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the Hong Kong SAR Government for his
contribution to the development of innovation and technology as well as
promotion of testing and certification industry in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices set out in Appendix 15 of
the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) Listing Rules (the “Code”)
takes effect from 1 January 2005. Except for the deviations as disclosed
on this report, the Company has complied with the Code by establishing
a formal and transparent procedures to protect and maximise the interests

of shareholders throughout the year under review.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

For the year ended 30 June 2012, the Company has adopted a code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors of the Company (“Directors”), all Directors confirmed they
have complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by directors adopted by the

Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors, one Non-
Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each director (“Director”)
are set out on the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior

Management” of this annual report.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall strategic
development of the Group. It also monitors the financial performance and
internal control of the Group’s business operations. Executive Directors
are responsible for running the Group and executing the strategies
adopted by the Board. The Board delegates day-to-day activities to the
management with department heads responsible for different aspects of
the business. Management is required to present an annual budget and
any proposal for major investments and changes in business strategies for

the Board’s approval.

The Non-Executive Directors serve the relevant function of bringing
independent judgement on the development, performance and risk
management of the Group through their contributions in board meetings.
They are also serving on audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee. Through their active participation, they provide
their valuable skills, expertise and experience to the Board and the
committees on which they serve so that the management process can be

critically reviewed and controlled.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In compliance with rule 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three Independent Non-Executive Directors and
at least one of them has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The Company has
received from each of the Independent Non-Executive Director an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Each Independent Non-Executive Director is required to
inform the Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that
may affect his independence. The Company had expressed the view in
its circular that Independent Non-Executive Director who was eligible
for re-election had met the independence guidelines of the GEM Listing
Rules. In respect of an Independent Non-executive Director who served
more than nine years, the Company had expressed its view in circular as
regards such Director’s independence.

The list of Directors and their role and function are published on the
websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the Company.

As part of the continuous professional development programme, Directors
participated in various briefings, training and seminars as arranged by the
Company with appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of
the directors as well as latest listing rule amendment.

Each Director ensures that he can give sufficient time, commitments and
attention to the affairs of the Company for the year.

The Board is provided with monthly financial summaries which contain
year-to-date key figures of the Group. The monthly financial summaries
give a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed regularly.

The Board meets at least four times a year to review the financial and
operating performance of the Company. There were four regular Board
meetings held in the financial year ended 30 June 2012. Details of the
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attendance of the Board are as follows: FEBWR

Attended/Eligible to attend
Name of Directors HHLEH WA Bk N
Executive Directors AT ge
Prof. Chan Chok Ki BRAE AL B 4/4

(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) (LA TECAE#)

Dr. Ma Chi Kit B 2/4
Mr. Ho Ka Ho EEL Sitn 4/4
Non-Executive Director FeHAr
Dr. Chan Cheung Fat BRAEHE L 4/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors W I PAT
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BT 4/4
Prof. Siu Wan Chi LBINGE €54 4/4
Prof. Ching Pak Chung TR Bud% 4/4
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

During the regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss and
formulate the overall strategies of the Company, review and monitor the
business and financial performances and discuss the quarterly, half-yearly
and annual results, as well as discuss and decide on other significant
matters. The company secretary records the proceedings of each Board
meeting by keeping minutes, including the record of all decisions by the
Board together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if
any). Draft of Board minutes are circulated to all Directors for comment
and approval as soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes are

open for inspection at any reasonable time on request by any Director.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1. stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

At present, Prof. Chan Chok Ki is both the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company who is responsible for managing the
Board and the Group’s business. Prof. Chan has been both the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since its incorporation. The
Board considers that Prof. Chan has in-depth knowledge in the Group’s
business and can make appropriate decisions promptly and efficiently.
The combination of the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
can effectively formulate and implement the Group’s strategies. The
Board also considers that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company as the Board, which comprises experienced and high caliber
individuals, meets regularly to discuss issues affecting the operations
of the Group. The Group considers that, at its present size, there is no
imminent need to segregate the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Non-Executive Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-Executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Code Provision A.4.2
stipulates that all Directors appointed to fill a causal vacancy should be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment, and every Director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

At present, the Independent Non-Executive Directors are not appointed
for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. In
addition, not every Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Directors are subject to rotation in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company (that at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater
than one-third, shall retire from office) provided that notwithstanding
anything therein, the Chairman of the Board and/or the managing
Director of the Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject
to retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining the
number of Directors to retire in each year. As such, with the exception
of the Chairman, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. The Board
considers that the continuity of office of the Chairman provides the
Group a strong and consistent leadership and is of great importance to
the smooth operations of the Group. Therefore, for stability reasons,
there is no imminent need to amend the Articles of Association of the
Company.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Nomination committee was formed by the Company during the year.

The Board is mainly responsible for identifying suitable candidates for
members of the Board when there is a vacancy or any additional Director
is considered necessary. The Board will review the qualifications of the
relevant candidate for determining the suitability to the Group on the

basis of his qualifications, experience and background.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is supported by

three Board committees. Each committee has its defined scope of duties

and terms of reference and the committee members are empowered

to make decisions on matters within the terms of reference of each

committee.

ey

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR# A B2 ]

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference based upon the guidelines recommended by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the

mandatory provisions set out in the Code.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the
Company’s annual report and financial statements, quarterly
reports and half-yearly report and to provide advice and comments
thereon to the Board. The audit committee will also be responsible
for reviewing and supervising the financial reporting and internal
control procedures of the Group. The audit committee has four
members comprising the three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Hon To, David, Prof. Siu Wan Chi and
Prof. Ching Pak Chung and one Non-Executive Director, namely,
Dr. Chan Cheung Fat. Mr. Yu Hon To, David, is the Chairman of

the audit committee.

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results have been
reviewed by the audit committee. It has also reviewed the
audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012
with management and the Company’s external auditors and
recommended its adoption by the Board. The audit committee had
held four meetings during the current financial year. Individual
attendance of each committee member at these meetings is as

follows:

Name of Directors WYLk
Non-Executive Director FPfTESH

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat PRAT 35 8+
Independent Non-Executive Directors LR SRR
Mr. Yu Hon To, David TR B
Prof. Siu Wan Chi [ BIRCE €54
Prof. Ching Pak Chung FEAA h H A%
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

(1)

Audit Committee (continued)

The Company Secretary keeps full minutes of all audit committee
meetings. In line with practices consistent with Board meetings,
draft and final versions of audit committee meeting minutes are
circulated to all members of the audit committee for comments,
approval and record as soon as practicable after each meeting.

The members of the audit committee are granted the authority to
full and unlimited access to all books and accounts of the Company
and any employees, consultants and advisers they may, from time
to time, wish to consult.

The Company has formalised the procedures for reporting possible
improprieties in matters of financial reporting, internal control or
other matters into a whistleblowing policy to encourage employees
and related third parties (such as customers and suppliers) who
deal with the Company to raise concerns in confidence about
misconducts, malpractices or irregularities in any matters related to
the Company. Detailed procedures are posted on the website of the
Company.

The main duties of the audit committee are as follows:

. Reviewing, in draft form, the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and quarterly reports and providing
advice and comments thereon to the Board. In this regard:

. members of the committee must liaise with the Board,
senior management and the person appointed as the
Company’s qualified accountant and the committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s
external auditors without the presence of the
management; and

. the committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected
in such reports and accounts and must give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the Company’s qualified accountant, compliance officer
or auditors.

. Reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial reporting
and internal control procedures.

. Reviewing the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience as well as training programmes of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

Other duties of the audit committee are set out in specific terms
of reference. The terms of reference have been amended to reflect
changes arising from the revised code, which is posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

(2

3
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Remuneration Committee

According to the Code, the Company has established a
remuneration committee in September 2005 and the primary
duties of the remuneration committee are to formulate and make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedures for developing policy on such remuneration. The
remuneration committee comprises two Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely, Prof. Siu Wan Chi and Prof. Ching Pak Chung
and one Non-Executive Director, namely, Dr. Chan Cheung
Fat. The Chairman of the committee is Prof. Siu Wan Chi. It is
scheduled to meet at least once a year and the quorum necessary

for the transaction of business is two.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the financial
year under review. The committee has considered and reviewed the
existing terms of service contracts of the Directors and considers
that the existing terms of the service contracts are fair and

reasonable.

The specific terms of reference of the remuneration committee have
been amended to reflect changes arising from the revised code,
which is posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established an nomination committee on 30
March 2012. The primary duties of the nomination committee
are to select and nominate individuals for directorship as well as
making recommendations to the Board on nomination policy. The
nomination committee comprises two Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely, Prof. Siu Wan Chi and Prof. Ching Pak Chung
and one Executive Director, namely, Prof. Chan Chok Ki. The
Chairman of the committee is Prof. Chan Chok Ki. The committee
shall meet not less than once a year and the quorum shall be two

members.

The specific terms of reference of the nomination committee is

posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the performance of external auditors, the audit fee, and any question of
resignation or dismissal. The external auditors’ fee is to be negotiated
with management of the Company, and annually analyzed for the
audit committee’s review. The audit committee is also responsible for
reviewing the extent of non-audit services provided by the external

auditors in relation to their independence.

The remuneration paid or payable in respect of services provided by the
external auditors for the year ended 30 June 2012 and 2011 is analysed

as follows:

Annual audit EE R
Non-audit services FEAZ SR Hs
— quarterly/interim result review — FJF PR

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general
meeting (“AGM”). In March 2012, the practice of HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng was reorganised as HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. The
audit committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited be nominated for appointment as the auditors of

the Company at the forthcoming AGM.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders
and, in particular, use AGM or other general meetings to communicate
with shareholders and encourage their participation in such meetings. The
Company regards the AGM as an important event in the corporate year
and Directors and senior management make an effort to attend and answer
questions from shareholders about the business and performance. Last
year, the Chairmen of all Board Committees attended the AGM and made
themselves available for the shareholders’ questions. Representatives
(usually the engagement partner and manager-in-charge) of the external
auditors also attended the AGM and explained to shareholders relating to

the conduct of their audit of the Company’s financial statements.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings for each
substantially separate issue, including the re-election of individual
Directors. The notice of the meeting, the annual report and the
circular containing information on the proposed resolutions are sent to
shareholders at least twenty clear business days before the meeting. The
voting procedures are according to the Listing Rules requirement. Poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company on the business day following the general meeting.

The most recent shareholders’ meeting was the AGM held on 11
November 2011 at our head office. All resolutions put to shareholders
were passed at the 2011 AGM. The next AGM will be held at our head
office on Friday, 9 November 2012 at 10:00 a.m.

To promote communication, the Company maintains our website where
the shareholders communication policy is posted. The procedures for
shareholders to put forward proposals at general meeting include a
written notice of proposals being submitted by shareholders, addressed
to the Company Secretary of the Company at our head office. Specific
enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention can be sent in
writing to the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office. Other
general enquiries can be directed to the Company through the Company’s

website.

Further, procedures for sharcholder to propose a person for election as a
Director of the Company is posted on our website. For such purpose, the
shareholders must send to the address of our head office a written notice
which identifies the candidate and includes a notice in writing by that
candidate of his/her willingness to be so elected. Detailed procedures are

posted on the website of the Company.
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DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and in presenting the quarterly and
annual financial statements, and announcements to shareholders, the
Directors aim to present a balanced and understandable assessment of the

Company’s position and prospects.

The Directors’ responsibilities in preparing financial statements and the
auditors’ responsibilities are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report

on page 29 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted a review of its system of internal control
periodically to ensure the effective and adequate internal control system.
The Company convened meetings periodically to discuss financial,
operational and risk management control. The audit committee has
discussed the internal control process with the management of the

Company during the financial year ended 30 June 2012.

The external auditor performs independent statutory audit on the Group’s
financial statements. As part of the audit engagement, the external
auditor also reports to the audit committee any significant deficiencies in
the Group’s internal control system which might come to their attention
during the course of audit. The external auditor noted no significant
internal control deficiencies in their audit for the financial year ended 30
June 2012.

GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Company develops and maintains competence levels and ethical
behaviour of staff members. These include clear competence criteria for
staff members and strong commitment to staff training and development.
To equip staff members to meet future challenges and professional
requirements, the Company offers a wide range of training and
development programmes in the areas sales, products, operations and

compliance.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Board of Directors of the Company believe that good corporate
governance can safeguard the effective allocation of resources and
safeguard shareholders’ interests. The Company will keep on reviewing
its corporate governance standards on a timely basis and the Board
endeavours to take the necessary actions to ensure compliance with the
required practices and standards including the provisions of the Code on

Corporate Governance Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company with its shares
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2012 are set out in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 31.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of share capital of the Company are set out in Note 22 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS
Details of the share option schemes of the Company are set out in Note

23 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 30 June 2012:

(i) The Group’s five largest customers accounted for 34% of the

Group’s total turnover.

(i) The Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers accounted
for 22% and 60% respectively of the Group’s total purchases (not

including purchases of items which are of capital nature).

According to the understanding of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their associates (within the meaning of the GEM Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange) or any shareholders who owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital had any interests in the Group’s five largest

suppliers.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its shareholders
as at 30 June 2012 comprised share premium, share options reserve and
retained profits in aggregate amounting to approximately HK$24,307,000
(2011: HK$24,484,000) provided that, after distribution, the Company
will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors:
Prof. Chan Chok Ki
Dr. Ma Chi Kit

Mr. Ho Ka Ho

Non-Executive Director:
Dr. Chan Cheung Fat

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Yu Hon To, David

Prof. Siu Wan Chi

Prof. Ching Pak Chung

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Dr. Ma Chi Kit and Prof. Siu Wan Chi will retire from office by rotation
at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election.

The term of office of each Non-Executive Director is the period up to
his retirement or rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of

Association.

Each of the Executive Director has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of one year commencing 1 April 2001,
which will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party

by giving six months’ prior written notice.

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat has entered into a two-year consultancy agreement
with the Company commencing 1 April 2001 under which he has agreed
to act as a research and development consultant to the Group on a part-
time basis. The service period of such agreement has been extended and
will continue unless and until terminated by either party by giving three

months’ prior notice.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE
OPTIONS

At 30 June 2012, the interests of the Directors, Chief Executives and
their associates in the shares and share options of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or which are required pursuant to Rule 5.46
of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock

o0 B B e kOB i 2 i 2

AR TAHENAZTH > BRSSO & B

([ 7875 B BRI ) 55 352 6 > R4

CRIZER b

BRI 55 5.46 I 7008 FIAS 28 7] SO A2 Pl 2 B E - &
o REATEON B RS 2 BN LA R B
AT AR I 3 B LGRS 27 SO B R 1)) 26 + 3B 2

%) 2 el KB b A 2 RERR 0 T

Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in shares:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each of the Company

Name of Directors

HALEH

Prof. Chan Chok Ki
WA S22

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat
PR B 1

(b) Share options

Name of Directors

WA

Prof. Chan Chok Ki
PR AR S 4%

Dr. Ma Chi Kit
ARG

Mr. Ho Ka Ho
R 5eE

24 TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR# A B2 ]

Capacity

 gils

Held by controlled corporation (Note 1)
HisZEE AR (At 1)

Held by controlled corporation (Note 1)
M SZEERIE TSR (At 1)

Capacity
&

Beneficial owner (Note 2)

HalEa N (7t 2)

Beneficial owner (Note 2)

HaEA N (7t 2)

Beneficial owner (Note 2)

HaEA N (7t 2)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE
OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in note 23
to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options
during the year:

o R e e i DB i 2 i 2 ()

B ) B IR ) 2 R O SR A B R R B
FE23 14 o

N ERAER A A AR A 2 IR )

Outstanding
at beginning
and end of
the year
Option type AR BAT 2%
Yk B i 250 ¥ ARAT 1
Category 1: Directors
BN 1 ES
Prof. Chan Chok Ki 2003 Option Scheme 135,000
BRAE S B A% TR AR H
Dr. Ma Chi Kit 2003 Option Scheme 126,000
G B TR AR H
Mr. Ho Ka Ho 2003 Option Scheme 124,000
[IEL T TR AR H
Total Directors # # &5t 385,000
Category 2: Employees
B2 RE
Employees 2003 Option Scheme 40,000
g 8 TR A IR 8
Total employees & & &5l 40,000
Total (all categories) & &l (BT A %) 425,000

Notes:

(1) These shares, representing approximately 57.5% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 30 June 2012, are held by Etin City Limited, which
is owned by Etin Tech Limited and CityU Enterprises Limited in the
proportion of 70% and 30% respectively. Etin Tech Limited is owned by
Prof. Chan Chok Ki, Dr. Chan Cheung Fat, Dr. Ma Chi Kit and Mr. Ho
Ka Ho in the proportion of approximately 44.3%, 34.3%, 14.3% and 7.1%,
respectively. As Prof. Chan Chok Ki and Dr. Chan Cheung Fat are entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of 30% or more of the voting power in
general meetings of Etin Tech Limited, they are deemed to be interested in
the entire shares in the Company held by Etin City Limited.

(2)  The share options have been granted to the Directors pursuant to the share
option schemes adopted by the Company, details of which are set out in
Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, and other than a nominee share in a subsidiary
held by a Director in trust for the Group, at 30 June 2012, none of the
Directors, the Chief Executives of the Company nor their associates
had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations.

Wik -

(1) RIEZE—ZAFEANHZTH > HEEARN A 8T
AK#)57.5% 2 Ay B Etin City Limited ##47 ° Etin City
Limited H1 Etin Tech Limited A 3 KA 264 BR S &) 45
AT 70% & 30% 2 LLBIFF4T © Etin Tech Limited J% H
PR AR 207 ~ BRAEEE I+~ 5 R ] R 520
M0y A % K9 44.3% > 34.3% 14.3% T2 7.1% 2 B A9
H oo A BRAE BT S e 8 1 LA HE R Etin Tech
Limited 2 B #OK & A7 (8 s 4% 47 30% s DL B2
TEEME > Wbk S WA A th Etin City Limited %
B ZARN A A R A R o

(2) W CHE COARIE A 20 v PR AN 2 T SRR R ) R
o A B AR RO S R R R 23

W b SO e 5 3 Ml — 24 35 S DU RE O X AR S 1
Fifr 2 W8 28 "IN NI ob > T =& — AN A
=+H o EE - AR FEZ B AT BN B B 2 B
BN o Sl AR 2 ) ML A e A B 3k B A AT i
1~ BRI SR 5 o A A Ao 4 SR
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes as described in Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses
or children under the age of eighteen, had any rights to subscribe for
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the

year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the related party transaction disclosed in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contracts of significance to which
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at end of the year or at any time during

the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than the interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
Interests in Shares and Share Options”, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO discloses no person as having a notifiable interest or short position

in the issued share capital of the Company as at 30 June 2012.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the

Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Company
are reviewed by the remuneration committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable

market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in

Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

The Directors believe that none of the Directors nor the management
shareholders of the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
had an interest in a business, which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group or any other conflicts of interests which any such

person has or may have with the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year under review, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has four members comprising the three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Hon To, David, Prof. Siu
Wan Chi and Prof. Ching Pak Chung and one Non-Executive Director,
namely, Dr. Chan Cheung Fat.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the Company’s
annual report and financial statements, quarterly reports and half-yearly
report and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board. The
audit committee will also be responsible for reviewing and supervising

the financial reporting and internal control procedures of the Group.

The audit committee has reviewed the draft of this report and has
provided advice and comments thereon. The audit committee held four

meetings during the year ended 30 June 2012.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee has three members comprising two
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Prof. Siu Wan Chi and
Prof. Ching Pak Chung and one Non-Executive Director, namely, Dr.
Chan Cheung Fat.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to formulate
and make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedures for

developing policy on such remuneration.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the financial year
under review. The committee has considered and reviewed the existing
terms of service contracts of the Directors and considers that the existing

terms of the service contracts are fair and reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee has three members comprising two
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Prof. Siu Wan Chi and
Prof. Ching Pak Chung and one Executive Director, namely, Prof. Chan
Chok Ki.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to select and
nominate individuals for directorship as well as making recommendations

to the Board on nomination policy.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained a sufficient

public float under the listing rules within the knowledge of the Directors.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming AGM. In March
2012, the practice of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng was reorganised as
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. A resolution for the appointment
of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors of the Company
for the subsequent year is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Prof. Chan Chok Ki
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 14 September 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

¥ 1A Yot

HLB B & 3t 0 F B oA

Hodgson Impey Cheng

11 Pedder Street, Central

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TELEEYE HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TeleEye
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 31 to 87, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 30
June 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

The Landmark

Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

¥ 1A Yot

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
30 June 2012, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 14 September 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 545 2 i 42 %%

For the year ended 30 June 2012 % —F— "4/ H =+ HILHE

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Research and development expenditure

(Loss)/Profit before taxation

Income tax credit/(expense)

(Loss)/Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (expense)/income:
Exchange differences arising on translating
foreign operations
Change in fair value on available-for-sale

investments

Other comprehensive (expense)/income
for the year

Total comprehensive (expense)/income
for the year

(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive (expense)/income
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

(Loss)/Earnings per share
— Basic

— Diluted

A

EH

HAtlg A
T2
e R 3% R s

BRBLAT (R 1R) /FI#
PR3 Bik e, (32 Hh)

ALETE (f51R) /FIiH
HAbA T (32 i

FSEEXCRE e 3
1M 7 A 2 BEE 5t 25 38

NOTES
Mt

11
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(1) /FIH
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2012 2011
e St —F
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T#L T T
37,425 45,693
(20,949) (22,117)
16,476 23,576
284 211
(9,701) (9,426)
(8,455) (7,463)
(5,348) (5,579)
(6,744) 1,319
498 (140)
(6,246) 1,179
(229) 209
(955) 1,393
(1,184) 1,602
(7,430) 2,781
(6,182) 1,206
(64) 27
(6,246) 1,179
(7,372) 2,817
(58) (36)
(7,430) 2,781
(68.39)HK cents #4ll  13.36 HK cents %/l
(68.39)HK cents ¥4l 13.21 HK cents ¥l

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR ¥ 5 4 FR A ]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION &8 WME IR #

At 30 June 2012 A —FE—4FNH=1+H

2012 2011
e St —E -4
NOTES HKS$’000 HK3$000
Mt et T#L T T
Non-current assets IE Wi B A
Property, plant and equipment Y2~ W Bt 13 836 1,339
Capitalised development costs B A B AR AL 14 2,748 2,207
Available-for-sale investments Al ik 16 5,213 6,168
8,797 9,714
Current assets it B
Inventories e 17 10,364 14,122
Trade and other receivables JRE AT R R e Al FRE WA K 18 4,584 5,312
Bills receivables M SR B 18 — 373
Tax recoverable Al Uk |l TE 206 _
Bank balances and cash SRATHS B KB4 19 14,431 15,719
29,585 35,526
Current liabilities i) & &
Trade and other payables JFRE ST R S % LAt JEE A5 35k 20 4,390 3,321
Tax payables JREAS Bt T 149 147
4,539 3,468
Net current assets B G A 25,046 32,058
Total assets less current liabilities A8 P W B B 33,843 41,772
Non-current liability I E) & AR
Deferred tax liabilities 70 S B TE B fE 24 — 499
Net assets B 33,843 41,273
Capital and reserves B R At
Share capital &N 22 1,808 1,808
Reserves G 32,270 39,642
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A\ ml#EA AMEAG 2 #E 4 34,078 41,450
Non-controlling interests I HE R 25 (235) (177)
Total equity HATE RS 33,843 41,273

B3 ERTHZGAMBMELERGR T — 4
JUA 0 B R R ETIED > i TR E R UK E
HEHE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 31 to 87 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 14 September 2012
and are signed on its behalf by:

MR. HO KA HO % 5264
DIRECTOR #Z

PROF. CHAN CHOK KI Blifi 3 8%
DIRECTOR #
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

S5 IR DL

At 30 June 2012 A —FE—4FNH=1+H

Non-current asset

Investment in a subsidiary

Current assets

Other receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Tax recoverable

Bank balances

Current liabilities

Accruals and other payables

Tax payable

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

B & E
T WY 2 7] 2 B A

oAb E WK

R LS i 2 w5
T i (e 5 7H
BATHIER

i A i

at b B R HAt A 3K

JEAS B IH

UL ) T 4
B HE
B KA
F&S
it

ik B

PROF. CHAN CHOK KI BfifE %32

DIRECTOR ##
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2012 2011

S i

NOTES HKS$°000 HKS$000
Hiit T T
15 10 10
61 64

21 24,464 24,832
206 —

19 2,095 2,559
26,826 27,455

721 998

— 175

721 1,173

26,105 26,282

26,115 26,292

22 1,808 1,808
25 24,307 24,484
26,115 26,292

MR. HO KA HO %% %4

DIRECTOR #Z

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR ¥ 5 4 FR A ]

33



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

34

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #( % ~F— 4N H =1 H ILFE

At July 2010

Profit/(Loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income/

(expense) for the year

Total comprehensive
income/(expense) for the year

Issue of ordinary shares upon

exercise of share options
At 30 June 2011
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive
(expense)/income for

the year

Total comprehensive
expense for the year

At 30 June 2012

Note:

RZZ-ZELA-R

RERAR/ (BR)

RERERbRERE/
()

KEERENE/
() 4%

AR EER
R2F——FRA=tH
FEEER

FEERER
() /e

REERHL A

REF-ZHRAZHI

Attributable to owners of the Company

The special reserve represents the difference between the aggregate of the

nominal value of share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group

reorganisation in April 2001 and the nominal value of the share capital issued by

the Company as consideration for the acquisition.

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR 7 B4 FR A 7]
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kA B A
(Accumulated

Investment Share losses)/ Non-

Share Share  Translation ~ revaluation options Special Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total nterests Total

¥ W (Ritki#l) / HiER
B RbEE EARE WG R WHRE  REAR it ik it
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
ikt Tk Tt ikt it Tt it Tt it Ti#r

(Note)
(Kt
1,803 21,646 (111) (640) 1,102 14990 (253) 38,537 (141) 3839
- - - — - - 1,200 1,206 @) 1179
- - 18 1,393 - - - 1,611 9 1,602
- — 18 1,393 — - 1,06 2817 (36) 2781
5 17 = = (80) = = % = 9%
1,808 UBIT 107 153 1,022 14990 953 41450 (1m) 41,273
- - - — - - (6,182) (6,182) (64) (6,240)
= = (235) (955) = = - (1,190) 0 (L,184)
- — (239) (955) - - (6,182) (131) (53) (7430)
1,808 US17 (128) (202) 1,02 14990 (5,229 34078 (235) 3,843
MIEE -

A £ A0 7 i AR S R — A I ) 2T AR I AL IR
A Z W 2 7 & w2 AR T R B O W) B AT I A A 2 i
R T A 2 2280 -



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BBk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(Loss)/Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:
Amortisation of capitalised development costs
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Allowance for obsolete stocks
Write down of inventories
Allowance/(Reversal of allowance) for bad and

doubtful debts

Dividend income from listed equity securities
Interest income from bank deposits

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before movements in working
capital

Decrease/(Increase) in inventories

Decrease in trade and other receivables

Decrease/(Increase) in bills receivables

Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Interest received
Tax (paid)/refunded

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Dividend income received

Increase in capitalised development costs

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Purchases of available-for-sale investments

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

BEEH

BRBLHT (R548) F1H

HUT S B AF
R INA E AL 2
Wi ~ RE Kt e
RELF R

A7 B s

SRR, ()
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2012 2011
it St 3 —F 4
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
T#x T T
(6,744) 1,319
909 737
644 619
848 106
493 446
238 (85)
(262) (194)
1 (1)

— (196)
(3,875) 2,751
2,417 (3,734)
490 2,200
373 (373)
1,069 (1,523)
474 (679)

1 1

(204) 62
271 (616)
262 194
(1,450) (1,303)
— 210

— (1,942)
(144) (707)
(1,332) (3,548)

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR ¥ 5 4 FR A ]



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BBk

36

For the year ended 30 June 2012 % —F— "4F/XH =1 H (L4F

FINANCING ACTIVITIES b SR

Proceeds from issue of shares

NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING FHMEEHZBETH

ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH B4 B B4 5 U W A
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RAER 2 B4 BB 425
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE i 23 5 W 2 3 2
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AL 2 BLE R B2 »
AT END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash RIERAT &5 8 R B4

TeleEye Holdings Limited THRZRARAF | Annual Report 2012 44

BAT LM 2 B A AKIH

2012 2011
—®— A T4
HKS$’000 HKS$000
T#x Fi#r

— 96

— 96
(1,061) (4,068)
15,719 19,586
(227) 201

14,431 15,719




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

1.

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. Its ultimate holding company is Etin Tech Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information section of

the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal

activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 15.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the

Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
New and revised HKFRSs applied in current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of

Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters

Amendments to HKFRS 7  Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets

HKAS 24 (as revised in Related Party Disclosures

2009)
Amendments to HK(IFRIC) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
— Int 14 Requirement

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

— Mg
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

2.

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR 7 B4 FR A 7]

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 1
Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 7

HKFRS 9

HKEFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKEFRS 12
HKFRS 13

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 12
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle!

Government Loans!

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities'

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures?

Financial Instruments?
Consolidated Financial Statements'
Joint Arrangements'

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities'
Fair Value Measurement'

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities: Transition
Guidance!

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income*
Deferred Tax — Recovery of

Underlying Assets?
Employee Benefits'

Separate Financial Statements'

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine'

Annual Report 2012 43
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification

and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally

recognised in profit or loss.

The Directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1 July 2015. Based on an analysis of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities as at 30 June 2012, the
adoption of HKFRS 9 is not expected to have material impact on

the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation and disclosures
HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial
statements and HK (SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities. HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control that
contains three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure,
or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee,
and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the
amount of the investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the

current standards.

HKFRS 10 and HKFRS 12 are effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

The Directors anticipate that HKFRS 10 and HKFRS 12 will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning 1 July 2013. The application of HKFRS
10 will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements. The application of HKFRS 12 may result in more

extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial
instrument items and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures
about fair value measurements, except in specified circumstances.
In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more
extensive than those in the current standards. For example,
quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-level
fair value hierarchy currently required for financial instruments
only under HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be
extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its

scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The Directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning 1 July 2013 and that the application of the new
standard may affect the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements and result in more extensive disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in either a single statement
or in two separate but consecutive statements. However, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made
in the other comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a) items
that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and
(b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same

basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the

amendments are applied in the future accounting periods.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so

as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective

date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with

those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately

from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having

a deficit balance (effective from 1 January 2010 onwards).
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related

taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when the goods are delivered and

titles have passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any

changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense

in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which

economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity and will be reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which cases,
the exchange differences are also recognised directly in other

comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the

heading of translation reserve.

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.

TeleEye Holdings Limited THRZRARAF | Annual Report 2012 44

EEE R8Ok (8

Ab s (%)

MBI AR & B R & > AL BB ER 2
EE R A AR IR Z R AL
M 5 B (RIHETT) - WA B S JE H A1 %
AR 2P AR o B e T S 7 S0 ) A0 K W
BB FERZEUT > RIS A2 R -
v FE A 22 MBS ZE R (AN ) & A L A 4 T i 2
HERD > 3l 2 5 ME S A T T 2 AR o

IR DR A AR
Ti) S ALk SROR AR At 8 S A 2 SR E SR i B
O $ MR B0 o 15 45 2 A 3k R R R 2 B SC o

BLH
P AS B S T 5 B IR B A B T S AR A RO o

B IR ST 30 L # A AF E E R B A 5 o R
B A A & 2 THT W4 R TP B 2 Rk 2 A
T PRHAS B4 oAt 4 B2 2 BB B T 418 2
W ABBASZIEE > IR IE G R s 241 2
THH o ARAE B 2 H B IH A AR o R i
CMTHEE R 2 B -

ESEBLIATI IR IR AR & MBS R EE KA 2
S THE (L B A M B A 2 A B B 2
IR 1 2 R RE T o 0 OB 0 L 2 {070 ol T A R
BT 7 22 R AR o EAEBIH EE E g R T
JU3 A B R 1 TR T ) D T el T R 2 A i
T A AT I K I 22 AT o T Ry 22 B TR
B R B W) UCERD (M IR 265 0F) 225
N B R R e R A R B
> ZHEEE XA ENA TR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all

or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or

settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all

estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effective
of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of

impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or

loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in

the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been

demonstrated:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so

that it will be available for use or sale;

. the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

c how the intangible asset will generate probable future

economic benefits;

c the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the

intangible asset; and

. the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to

the intangible asset during its development.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (continued)

Research and development expenditure (continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the

same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the four
categories, including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

50

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or losses.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade, bills and other receivables and bank balances and cash)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL,
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments. The Group
designated certain listed equity securities as available-for-sale
financial assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on impairment

loss on financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
the reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment loss on

financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost

is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or
. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest

and principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset

because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period of one month, observable changes in national or local

economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest

rate.
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the

period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been

had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment revaluation
reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an

event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and

the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised

at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other
than those financial liability classified as at FVTPL, of which the

interest expense is included in net gains or losses.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for

the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts
on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the

basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised

in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at
the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is

material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees after 1 July 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is recognised as
an expense in full at the grant date when the share options granted
vest immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share

options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates during the
vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a

corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred

to retained profits.

Share options granted to employees before 1 July 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the
consolidated financial statements until such time as the options are
exercised, and no charge is recognised in profit or loss in respect of
the value of options granted. Upon the exercise of the share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded as additional share capital
at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise
price per share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded as
share premium. Options which lapse or are cancelled prior to their

exercise date are deleted from the register of outstanding options.
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of

the impairment loss, if any.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,

and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of

future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The critical accounting judgement and key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis at the
end of the reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items especially technology solution system
identified that are of minimal resale value due to technological
changes. The management estimates the net realisable value for
such inventory based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. The Group carries out an inventory
review on a product-by-product basis at the end of the reporting

period and makes allowance for obsolete items.

Estimated impairment of capitalised development costs
Determining whether capitalised development costs is impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount determined by
the value in use of the capitalised development costs. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the capitalised development costs and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. The
Group carries out an impairment review assessment on a product-
by-product basis in respect of the capitalised development costs at
the end of the reporting period and no impairment is made for the
years ended 30 June 2012 and 2011.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The policy for allowance of bad and doubtful debts of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of
accounts and on management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer. If the financial conditions
of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances

may be required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 % —F— "4F/XH =1 H (L4F

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. &WTH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) EWTHAE
2012 R4
Financial assets BB
Loans and  Available-for-sale
receivables financial assets Total
FEARMREBOR T A ek A sk
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T#oC T#oC T#7
Available-for-sale investments 1] {it H 8 4% & — 5,213 5,213
Trade and other receivables JHRE WA B e LAt JEE ik 3,527 — 3,527
Bank balances and cash SRAT &5 Bk M 3 4 14,431 — 14,431
17,958 5,213 23,171
Financial liabilities EHA T
Financial

liabilities at
amortised cost

DL ST A Bl 2
WA
HKS$’000
F#x
Trade and other payables JREAST R e LAt JRE AT 3k 4,009
2011 R
Financial assets 2l =
Loans and Available-for-sale
receivables financial assets Total
SERRBMC T (k5 5l 7 it
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
T T Tt
Available-for-sale investments  AJ ki 82 £ & — 6,168 6,168
Trade and other receivables HE AT B s R At R Wi 2k 4,306 — 4,306
Bills receivables JE s EE 373 — 373
Bank balances and cash SRAT A R K B 4 15,719 — 15,719
20,398 6,168 26,566
Financial liabilities A
Financial

liabilities at
amortised cost

DU S A SI(E 2
4 Rl £ %
HK3°000

TFi#oT

Trade and other payables JRE A R 2k o Al JRE A+ 35K 3,080
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

S.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, trade and other receivables, bills
receivables, bank balances and cash and trade and other
payables. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. Approximately 65% (2011: 66%) of the Group’s sales
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the group entity making the sales, whilst almost
53% (2011: 33%) of costs are denominated in the group

entity’s functional currencies.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currencies
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the

reporting date are as follows:

5. BT R
(b) B R e 4 B H R e R

A ) 2 A R TR A T I AR

B SR R B K At R K

JHE Wi 52

5 |ATHER LB - AT IR % H At

FEAT 3K o A B % 55 2 Al T

HZwERE

AR EER SR - ARZFEM TR
J B 45 T 45 By (1 B ~ AR L B
e HoAb AR A S B ) ~ A5 5B B Ui ) <
JEBR o A7 B B D 5% 5 el B 2 BOK #5

3 o B P B A

704
Vegivl g

%

il DRACE 8 B B T A 2O B A T

4 Ja g o DA
B A o

A AE 25 T BB S F LA AN R AT B

6 A 45 ) T 3 A1 R B o A 4R L 6 B AR
#165% (& ——4 1 66%) & VA & 2
A% 45 M B 2 T g B DA 2 ]S
B > T B S3% (& — —4F 1 33%) Z
BAS DAAS S [0 E A 45 3 2 T Re & HE A (A -

ECE B AR DL R B 2 B
W EE AR R E REEN T

Liabilities Assets
£ 4 B

2012 2011 2012
e St o TR e St
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000
T Fi# T T#x
GBP B 250 303 2,092
RMB AR 639 441 703

2011

S
HK$°000
Tl

3,011
509

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the Directors continuously monitor
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

A B B 051 W2 BORE < ST
o S0 A S I A 7

IR 2% g 36 v 2 K SM I JEL R o
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

S.

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR 7 B4 FR A 7]

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of fluctuations in
GBP and RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
(2011: 5%) increase and decrease in Hong Kong dollars
against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2011: 5%) is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchanges rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currencies denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2011: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.
A positive number below indicates an increase in profit and
decrease in other equity where Hong Kong dollars weaken 5%
(2011: 5%) against the relevant currencies. For a 5% (2011:
5%) strengthening of Hong Kong dollars against the relevant
currencies, there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the profit and other equity, and the balances below would be
negative.

Impact of GBP

5.

Sk TR (4])

(b)

Yo 5 e gt 4 B ) B O ()

7 53 b g ()

B (4)

BB b

A G T T T B B e N R W B 2 5
o .

T E S AR B [ S o0 A B AN 2
it 2 7E B 5% (& ——4F 1 5%) HE Rk
e 2 BURE © 5% (—F——4F 1 5%) J9 A
TS o AR BN B TR R A0 L g IR BT 4R
T Z BRI > A B R AN R R S
SN RE B B 2 FEAN o MURE o T A
DLAR o B 2 A B R R TE R
B HLA A A R IR AN TE R ) 5% (-
T——4F 1 5%) M HBZHH - FIIIE
BRI AE W T AH B B R S 5% (—
T ——4F  5%) IRE I 3 B B Ath 4 2
WY o B T AH B B R R 5% (—
T —4F 1 5%) I 3R K A 4
2 R AEEAM R HIE B A > TN B &

Impact of RMB

P2 i B ARWZ B8

2012 2011 2012 2011

e St R4 e St S ZE A

HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000

T#IC T T T#C T #or

Profit or Loss GAINEEY 2R 38 83 2 6

Equity WE 3 235 177 110 93
Interest rate risk VIEV)

The Group’s bank balances have exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances. The Directors consider
the Group’s exposure of bank balances to interest rate risk is
not significant as fluctuation of savings interest rates on bank
balance is minimal. The Group currently does not have a
policy on hedges of interest rate risk. However, the Directors
monitor interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles. In addition, the
Directors monitor the price risk on an ongoing basis and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Other price risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on

the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.

If equity prices had been 5% (2011: 5%) higher/lower,
investment revaluation reserve would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$261,000 (2011: HK$308,000) as a result

of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments.

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2012, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly

reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.

The Group does not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk. Trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical

areas.

5. 4&WTH)

(b)
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

S.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash

flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual

maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been

5.

4k T H (4)
(b) TS R e 4 B R e R (%5
it ) B 5 R

TE 5 B ) < A g D - AR AR A
B R R — K 2 Bl RBLEEEY
1M 5% 7K~ 75 5 B A0 5 2 DA 3 A5 A 4 1
ES YIRS N R T P2

TR AL M AR R RS A
Mo ARF I EEMARZ RIEE &

ViR T R o TR e B R A AR
P AT W SR R 2 e B H IR o e
BB A TG e = Ak B E -
TREFHERACHERE

drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for financial liabilities
are based on the agreed repayment dates. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.
Liquidity tables ) E

Total carrying

Total amount at
On demand or undiscounted the end of the
less than 1 year cash flows reporting period
HER K AP BBLE T K
B 1A i w A & ke i ¥ 48
2012 TR T4 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
Tt T Tt Tt
Non-derivative JeA 2k 4 b A 4
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables R A5K Wk B G i M A+) 35k 4,009 4,009 4,009
2011 R4
Non-derivative A A A AR
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables JREAST BE 32 K7 At JRE A5) 5k 3,080 3,080 3,080
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5. AR (4)
(¢) Fair value () AT

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

— the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded in active
liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted

market bid prices and ask prices respectively; and

—  the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices or rates from observable market

transactions as inputs.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair

values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on

the degree to which the fair value is observable:

— Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities.

—  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from

prices).

—  Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 % —%

S.

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR 7 B4 FR A 7]

— CAEARHETH I

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(¢) Fair value (continued)

4k T H (4)
(c) APAH(H)
30 June 2012

“R-TAEANAZTH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
W W W= A5t
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T#x T#x T#x T#x
Available-for-sale AT
investments
Listed equity securities [ i HE 25 V76 25 5,213 — — 5,213
30 June 2011
“E—-—ENHA=1TH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— 55 %= At
HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
T#T T#T T IT T#TT
Available-for-sale GRS E=Ei'a
investments
Listed equity securities LT as M S5 6,168 — — 6,168
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 and no ARG B ROMAE AR BE > 58— SR A AR

transfer into or out of Level 3 in the current year and prior

years.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged

from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,

comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a quarterly basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new

share issues as well as the issue of debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for goods
sold, less returns and allowances to outside customers during the
year.

The Group’s reportable and operating segment have been identified
on the basis of internal management reports prepared in accordance
with accounting policies conform to HKFRSs, that are regularly
reviewed by the Executive Directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker of the Group, for the purpose of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

The Executive Directors regularly review revenue and overall
operating results derived from research and development and sales
and marketing of video monitoring systems and consider them as
one single reportable and operating segment.

Geographical information
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) and UK.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers
is presented based on the geographical location of customers.
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented
based on the geographical location of the assets.

external customers

WA e 23 BB R
WA TR R ESMR A F O 8 2 SR g
W SR TR AR s S Y 2 O o

AR 2 W] B R Sy UG 4 R A B R
i H o A B R T AT A R R R
BRBRRE - AR FPITER (AERZ
HR RN ) W > DA Bl IR K aE
HASHERBE B A -

YT EFEMFEMEGEERS o > #E
T T 355 HH JB8 T 78 AR 22 it R R R A AR > I
A2 — il B — T 2 S

B I 2R
ALE L EBAREE - PEARILAE ([
B ) Ko

BB ALE AR ASNRE S WA Z ERI3HF
PrAe sl 251 o A B ASE B IR R B E 2 iR
FEE I TE L 52 571 o

Revenue from

Non-current assets

R HEIE P ZBA U oy ¥ e
2012 2011 2012 2011
e St R4 e St S TR ——AF
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T#i Fi# T T#i Fir
Asia CHE 22,658 22,584 3,480 3,385
Europe e 6,540 11,336 104 161
Africa FE M 6,713 9,656 — —
Others HoA 1,514 2,117 — —
37,425 45,693 3,584 3,546

Note: Non-current assets exclude available-for-sale investments.

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

KA

Customer A
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2012 2011

N e
HK$’000 HK3$°000
T F T
5,954 8,103
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

8. OTHER INCOME

Other income is analysed as follows:

Dividend income from listed equity securities
Interest income from bank deposits
Others

9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Loss)/Profit before taxation has been arrived at

after charging/(crediting):

Staff salaries and other benefits
(including directors’ remuneration)

Retirement benefits schemes contributions

Total staff costs

Less: Amount capitalised as development costs

Allowance/(Reversal of allowance) for bad and
doubtful debts

Allowance for obsolete stocks
(included in cost of sales)

Amortisation of capitalised development costs
(included in research and development
expenditure)

Auditors’ remuneration

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Net foreign exchange losses/(gains)

Write down of inventories

(included in cost of sales)

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR 7 B4 FR A 7]

8. HAbWA
HAg A Z - #rn v -
2012 2011
e St S R
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T Tir
TR RS M 2 BB A 262 194
SRATAEFF B WA 1 1
HAthy 21 16
284 211
9. BB ), A
2012 2011
SR S
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
T F#or
BRBiaT (R18) /Al E ik,
(FHA)
B T34 e HAth 45 A
(B FEEE F M) 16,404 16,569
AR PR AR A 5T B 41 3 657 566
48 TR 17,061 17,135
M EARA N HN B B A
I (1,450) (1,303)
15,611 15,832
SRR (T A )
238 (85)
L BB (B A ABSE A
848 106
T J A E AL 2 B S
(LA 5T K 38 Je S M)
909 737
72 B R M 4 321 311
YIE ~ WU Bkt 2 P 644 619
WEYZE - BE K 2 U s
— (196)
TE S s 48 (e 5 ) 15 48 2 (664)
17 B (2 9 8 8 A )
493 446
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 10. HFELEAME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2011: seven) EATEEA B (CF——4F B HERH
Directors were as follows: Z M
2012 e St 2
Prof. Chan Dr. Ma Mr. Ho Dr. Chan Prof. Siu  Prof. Ching  Mr. Yu Hon
Chok Ki Chi Kit KaHo  Cheung Fat Wan Chi  Pak Chung To David Total

AR MR WERRA O WRENL EARHEE RRPEE e it
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

T#x T#x T#7x T#z T#z T#7z T#7z T#7z

Fees fis — — — — 60 60 60 180
Other emoluments Him 4
Salaries and other benefits 74 MR 2,306 911 966 187 — — — 4,370
Contributions o retirement  RIKFEAIG I
benefits schemes 12 12 12 — — — — 36
Total emoluments S 2,318 923 978 187 60 60 60 4,586
2011 -
Prof. Chan Dr. Ma M:r. Ho Dr. Chan Prof. Siu Prof. Ching ~ Mr. Yu Hon
Chok Ki Chi Kit KaHo  Cheung Fat Wan Chi ~ Pak Chung To David Total
BIEEAR  BERML  MRERE  RHENL O @ARER RAMER  aEERs st

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000
Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk

Fees fis = — — — 60 60 60 180
Other emoluments Hofb
Salaries and other benefits %4 KL MAEA] 2913 1,48 1,075 187 - - - 5,423
Contributions to retirement R IRFR|FHH 3K
benefits schemes 12 12 12 — — — — 36
Total emoluments L 2,925 1,260 1,087 187 60 60 60 5,639
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

10.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The five highest paid individuals included three (2011: three)
Directors, details of whose emoluments are set out above. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2011: two) individuals, which
fall within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000 for each of the two
years ended 30 June 2012 and 2011, were as follows:

Salaries and other benefits 4 S HoAth 4w A1
Contributions to retirement AR A FT K

benefits schemes

During each of the two years ended 30 June 2012 and 2011, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, including Directors, as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In addition,
no Director waived any emoluments during the years ended 30 June
2012 and 2011.
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10.

s R g 4 (4

EHMMEREZ AP @8 = ((CF
— 4 S EE S B L SUIRA A RS
T o HERM(ZF——4F « W) ALt
BOR TR F - —FNH =T H MM
AR 45 AE 2 B 42 A T & 221,000,000 # G 0 7
BUF

2012 2011

R E—
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T T
792 783

24 24

816 807

REE_F-—_HLE-F-—HFAA=1HIL
8 {184 32 4% AF 1 > A 42 [ 07 0 i) o7 P < B v
Z N (A S ) SOAAE AT SA A 2 W 51 8t
SE NI AR B2 1) 2 38 Bl S AE A SR B 2 Ry
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 % —%

11.

—AENA

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax
Current year
Under/(Over) provision in respect of
prior years

Deferred tax (note 24)
Current year

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% of the

estimated assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate

of the PRC subsidiary is 25%.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The tax (credit)/charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)/
profit per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as

follows:

(Loss)/Profit before taxation

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of
16.5% (2011: 16.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Under/(Over) provision in respect of
prior years

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions

Others

Tax (credit)/charge for the year

=+ H AR

1. PifdB (k) /3 i

A s M 5B
AR
HBAEAR RS L GBI

ELERLIE (M 7 24)
A

2012 2011
TR R4
HKS$°000 HKS$'000
T#or T#T
— 232

1 (192)

1 40

(499) 100
(498) 140

8 1R 4 B2 22 A Y R A B3 DA I B TR 4

F16.5% A o

calculated at the rate

HRPE o B > 2E T 5 B ik ([ AR5 ) Jedls
3 FT 5 vk 2 BG4
F525% o

w1 Y ) 2 B R

P JF At ) ik W [ 7 A 2 T % A B D ik [

Z B RBLREHE -

BRBLAT (ki 18) /I

Fi A b T 15 BB R 16.5%
(T ——4F 1 16.5%) 5t 2 BB
ST H0HL B 52 2 Bl 2

PR AR Z BB 5 2

ﬁ*ﬁaﬁﬁ%@Zﬁ;%ﬁ
WA RN GBI

A At ) 5 R [ A8 7 o 2 ) B
A 2 B v 2
oAt

ALERE 2 BUH (GE5) /S
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AL 2 B (R %) /52 a] B 7 2 T i
mERFZ (EHE) FIEERNT

2012 2011

T Y. —E——4F
HKS$000 HKS$000
F#x FiEn
(6,744) 1,319
(1,113) 218
502 109
(427) (148)
660 177

1 (192)

(121) (35)

— 11

(498) 140
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 12.
The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following

B O ) B
AU FIBREA N A B A M R ik
6 AR LU T oo

data:
2012 2011
e St —E 4
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T#oC T
(Loss)/Earnings (E518) Wi a5
(Loss)/Earnings for the purpose of basic FH CAGT A AR I 0 (s 18)
and diluted (loss)/earnings per share gk 2 (EG518) /Wi
((Loss)/Profit for the year (A0 A AN EAG AR 4R B2 (548
attributable to owners of S FE)
the Company) (6,182) 1,206
000 000
T T
Number of shares et ¥ H
Weighted average number of ordinary R AR (5 1R) e ts 2
shares for the purpose of basic (loss)/ A T R T 2 B
earnings per share 9,039 9,027
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary TELE A B RO B 2 R 2
shares:
— Share options — M RE — 100
Weighted average number of ordinary PR B (R 18) e 2
shares for the purpose of diluted A3 S I T 44 3
(loss)/earnings per share 9,039 9,127

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 30
June 2012 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s share
options since their exercise would result in decrease in loss per

share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 % —%

THE GROUP

COST

At 1 July 2010
Exchange adjustments
Additions

Disposals

At 30 June 2011
Exchange adjustments
Additions

Disposals

At 30 June 2012

DEPRECIATION

At 1 July 2010
Exchange adjustments
Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposals

At 30 June 2011
Exchange adjustments
Provided for the year
Eliminated on disposals

At 30 June 2012

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 30 June 2012

At 30 June 2011

— CAEARHETH I

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

A4 1
ﬁ$
EE%%
A

—ZEEA—H

REF-ZHAA=ZTH

il

@Eﬂ%
AR
Hy

—ZHELA—H

R-F——FAA=1H
HEE 52 5 B
AR
B

REF-ZHEAAZTH

e e i

REF—-ZHAA=TH

R_F——EANA=1H

13. Yok ~ B Bk il
Furniture

Leasehold and Office Motor
improvements fixtures equipment vehicle Total
HEWEEE GRIEKE  RAERME R Hst
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T#r T T T#T T#T
412 334 2,102 780 3,628
4 8 37 — 49
31 14 194 468 707
— (103) (199) (464) (766)
447 253 2,134 784 3,618
1 (1) (11) — (11)
33 4 107 — 144
— (23) (66) — (89)
481 233 2,164 784 3,662
372 284 1,237 478 2,371
4 8 29 — 41
48 24 393 154 619
— (1o1) (187) (464) (752)
424 215 1,472 168 2,279
1 (1) ®) — ®)
16 17 349 262 644
— (23) (66) — (89)
441 208 1,747 430 2,826
40 25 417 354 836
23 38 662 616 1,339

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated

on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment

Motor vehicle

20%-33'/,% or over the lease term,

whichever is shorter
20%
20%-33"'3%
331/3%
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LAty - BRE KA IHE TS LB ST

R

HEY RS 20%-33"/.% SAH B
(AR 3 B YE)

ELIVNE S 20%

b N 20%-33'/%

IR 3313%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

72

THE GROUP
COST

At 1 July 2010
Additions

At 30 June 2011
Additions

At 30 June 2012
AMORTISATION
At 1 July 2010

Provided for the year

At 30 June 2011
Provided for the year

At 30 June 2012

CARRYING AMOUNTS

At 30 June 2012

At 30 June 2011

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4F N H =+ H L4

14. CAPITALISED DEVELOPMENT COSTS

14. BREAE AL

A H

P

W oFE—FFELH—
NN

R oFE——FRNA=
WHE
R_F—AENH =
3]

W oFE—FELA—
AR FHE

N oFE——FEARNA=
ARIEFEFHR
R-F—TAEANH=
I i i
R_F—AENH =
RE——FNH =

Development costs recognised as an asset are amortised using the

straight-line method over three years from the date it is available

for use.

The Directors reviewed the carrying value of the capitalised

development costs at the end of the reporting period with reference

to the discounted future cash flows from the products developed.

They determined that no impairment loss should be made at 30

June 2012 and 2011.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR#E A R ]
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Total

Bt

HKS$°000

F T

H 11,286
1,303

+H 12,589
1,450

+H 14,039
H 9,645
737

+H 10,382
909

+H 11,291
+H 2,748
+H 2,207

C R B 2 B A > e HaT 6 B
AL R = AR S ] DA B A g

EHRC2HOHBEEM BRI G &
T W R A AL SRR A 2 BRI - 1K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

15.

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY

Unlisted shares, at cost

I BT o A

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 30 June 2012 were as

follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Name of subsidiaries and operation

sl Mg

Fb I 2 ¥ 45 % Be 848 i 5

Signal Communications BVI

Holdings Limited LB IR LR

SiCOM China Limited BVI

S T

SiCOM Europe Limited BVI

e J i R

SiCOM Japan Limited BVI

0 LR

Signal Communications Hong Kong

Limited s
T HIRBHA R A

TeleEye Europe Limited UK

e

TeleEye Solutions Limited Hong Kong

THIRMERGARAF i

T B R SRS BB (I PRC

HBRAF (Note) (Hf7#) g

Issued and fully
paid up ordinary
share capital/
registered capital
AT R
B e A,
k2 AR

HK$15,000,000
15,000,000 i G

Uss1
IS

US$1
13270

USS$1
17T

HK$1,000
1,000 #JC

GBP100
100 8%

HKS$10
10 %70

US$130,000
130,000 35T

Note: The company is registered in the form of a wholly foreign owned

enterprise.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.
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15. A A A Z B

The Company

A
2012 2011

S N
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T Tt

10 10

R_F—THEANA=ZTH s ARFEIRE AR Z

RET

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital/
registered capital

held by the Company

HIA 2 7]
2 BT IRA
w3 A 22 i Ve 5l
Directly Indirectly

% GiEES
% %
100 —
— 100
— 100
— 100
— 100
— 95
— 100
— 100

Principal activities

ER =30

Investment holding

BUEEN

Investment holding

BrE

Investment holding

BUETER

Investment holding

BB

Research and development and
sales and marketing of video
monitoring systems

PG B8 R A8 2 W7 B B 8 I
S % T 4 P

Sales and marketing of video
monitoring systems
PGB RS 8 )
i35 1

Inactive

Wy d e 2

Production, sales and marketing
of video monitoring systems
HGEEERGE
BH 65 B S

MFE © wZ%s w LAAR RS A2 2 07 SR o

T 7% A JBE A A5 Wy AR A J3E AT Ao e ) A0 - AR S f
J& o~ R AR AT OB AT 2 T R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 % —F— "4F/XH =1 H (L4F

16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 16. kA BE
The Group
%3 3L |

2012 2011
e St —F——4
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
Tl Tt
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong s b TR R R 5,213 6,168
At the end of the reporting period, all available-for-sale investments R BATR > BT AT AR B Y DA TE S
are stated at fair value. Fair values of those investments have been I - ZEREZ N TETIS 7 R iRz

determined by reference to bid prices quoted in active markets. BB A E o

17. INVENTORIES 17. 1%
The Group
AL H

2012 2011
S S
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T Tt
Raw materials JE R 5,662 8,931
Finished goods RIRG 4,702 5,191
10,364 14,122
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 % —F— "4F/XH =1 H (L4F

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND BILLS 18.  HEWBCHR 3K B 30 fib i WBe ik e M o 2 95
RECEIVABLES
The Group
AR M
2012 2011
it St 3 —F——4
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T#7x T
Trade receivables JE Ui B 2K 3,234 3,900
Less.: Allowance for bad and doubtful W R SEAREE
debts (172) (90)
3,062 3,810
Prepayments, deposits and other TEAST FRIA ~ e 4 K HAh RE ARk
receivables 1,522 1,502
4,584 5,312
The Group allows an average credit period of one month to certain KREBAERLETE I FEFRETH—MEAZGE
of its trade customers. The following is an ageing analysis of trade FHA o 1A SR M A e B B o O 2 A A5 K H A
receivables (net of allowance for bad and doubtful debts) at the end Fy BEMET 103 2 EMSOIR 3K (Ch B RS AR HR
of the reporting period prepared on the basis of payment due date B BT AN R

of sales invoice:

The Group
A4

2012 2011
. St 2 —F 5
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T#x TiT
Current IR 2,634 3,236
1 to 3 months overdue miHA 1 &= 38 A 407 537
More than 3 months overdue i 1A BB R 3 1R A 21 37
3,062 3,810
All bills receivables of the Group at 30 June 2011 are aged within AR T —— RN H =1 H 2 Rk s

one month at the end of the reporting period. BRI A gk AR —MA W -
Before accepting new customer, the Group assesses the potential R R F T > AEE G EEERF 2 1E
customers’ credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. BEER > DERAERFZEEEE -G THEF

Limits attributed to customers are reviewed annually. 2R T AT o
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4F N H =+ H L4

18.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$428,000 (2011:
HK$574,000) which are past due at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss, as
the Group considered such balance could be recovered based on
historical experience. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

1 to 3 months overdue w1 =318 H
More than 3 months overdue i A ER 8 3 4R

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts

At beginning of the year AR

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RSN

Reversal of allowance for bad and SR AR 3 A 3 )
doubtful debts

Amounts written off as uncollectible S 77 T i ] 4 B

At end of the reporting period A AR

Included in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance
of approximately HK$172,000 (2011: HK$90,000) which were past
due and not recoverable as the debtors are experiencing financial
difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances.
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18. M MBS sk e Uil M Mk B M B S 9 (4D

A AR T 2 R iR AN B B AR AR T (A0 A
428,000 5 U0 (—F ——4F : 574,000 ¥ 0) &
TH > Tis et BHOR B A A o T R A A 4 AR 45
AT RS - R W] DA [ B 45 B > AR AR I
Rt P (R 1E o A5 B Mt 5% 5 45 R 1
AEARTHEH 5 o

O 30914 L ek 2 MG B
The Group
A4
2012 2011
SR e
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T#x TH#IT
407 537
21 37
428 574
IR IR 358 415 52 )
The Group
AR

2012 2011
—R— T4 T4
HKS$’000 HKS$000
T#x Fi#or
920 235
238 —
— (85)
(156) (60)
172 90

SR 5 B A0 L A I (2 R AR R A R A
172,000 45 7T (=& — — 4 : 90,000 % 7T) » J§
i A K AR S N B AE B A B S TR 6 T AS B Ui
] o 7S B2 [H] 5 S 50 5% 56 45 B 4 A AT AT K49 s o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 % —F— "4F/XH =1 H (L4F

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND BILLS 18. IO 5k B Ul M VB sk B M B 55 0 (480
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
Ageing of impaired trade receivables YL M BBk - M
The Group
AR M
2012 2011
—R— TR R4
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
THE THT
More than 3 months overdue R A 3 ME H 172 90
19. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 19. BUTHIBE KB
Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term bank SRAT 45 % S Bl B A5 AR B R AR A R R 2
deposits held by the Group and the Company with an original B4 R SR e s =R A sk DA A 2 A 2 0 SR AT A7
maturity of three months or less. The bank balances carry interest K o SRATAEHIE 0.01% 2 0.35% (= F——4 ¢
at the prevailing market interest rates which range from 0.01% to 0.01% % 0.21%) Z BL47 i &5 4F Fl 5 B - A
0.35% (2011: 0.01% to 0.21%) per annum. At 30 June 2012, the “E-THENAZTH > AEFEAAREE B L
Group had bank balances and cash that were not freely convertible o By, 7 v B A1 I B 422 BT R 2 $RAT AT 3k S B4 4
or were subject to exchange controls in the PRC amounting to 41,0005 70 (—F——4 : 118,000 #7C) °

approximately HK$41,000 (2011: HK$118,000).
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

JE Ao R 3K
At b 2 S H A RE A 3k

Trade payables

Accruals and other payables

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables at the end of
the reporting period prepared on the basis of payment due date of

supplier’s invoice:

Current B[ 1A
w1 =31 H
s 1 A8 3 8 A

1 to 3 months overdue

More than 3 months overdue

The normal credit period on purchases of goods is one month.
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20, HEA MK B Uil R Aok 3k

The Group
AR

2012 2011
S e
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T#x TH#IT
2,763 1,809
1,627 1,512
4,390 3,321

A S o S R B I B S 2 B S A B A
HE T w43 2 B A IR AR I 0 AT U T

The Group
7 4 18

2012 2011
TR TR —gp——0F
HKS$’000 HK$’000
Filbr T
2,216 1,554
413 170
134 85
2,763 1,809

PRI 2 —IF R A —MWA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At VA 0

For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

21.

22.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

The Company

The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable

on demand.

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.2 each

Authorised:
At beginning of year and
at end of year

Issued and fully paid:

At beginning of year

Issue of shares upon exercise
of share options

At end of year

AR E{E 0.2 % 7T
2 5 i

EEIA
SRIPES S

B AT MU A
4

A7 {6l s P fy
ATy

G

21, HEWCBH B 2 Rl sk 5

A
%55 R SRR A RER R H R R
B o
22. JBAs
Number of shares Share capital
IRty ¥ H JBe A
2012 2011 2012 2011
S e e = e
000 '000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
T TR T#x TH#IC
40,000 40,000 8,000 8,000
9,039 9,015 1,808 1,803
— 24 — 5
9,039 9,039 1,808 1,808
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 % —%

— CAEARHETH I

23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

()

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR 7 B4 FR A 7]

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Scheme”)
The Pre-IPO Scheme was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 12 April 2001 to recognise the contribution of
Executive Directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries to the growth of the Group. The options granted
under the scheme grant the right to the holders to subscribe
for new ordinary shares of the Company at HK$12 per
ordinary share and the maximum number of shares in respect
of which options might be granted under the scheme was
720,000. The number of shares in respect of which options
might be granted to any individual was not permitted to
exceed 180,000.

Options might be granted without any initial payment.
Options granted are exercisable to the extent of an aggregate
total of 25%, 50%, 75% and 100% at anytime after 6 months,
18 months, 30 months and 42 months, respectively, from the
commencement of the trading of the shares of the Company
on the GEM, and have duration of 10 years from their

respective vesting dates.

Upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the GEM on
8 May 2001, no further options could be granted by the
Company under the Pre-IPO Scheme. The rights of the
holders of the share options granted prior thereto are not
affected and such options granted continue to remain valid

and exercisable in accordance with the terms of the scheme.
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4F N H =+ H L4

23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Scheme”)

()

(continued)

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s

share options under the Pre-IPO Scheme during the year

ended 30 June 2011.

Directors of the Company

ARG

Prof. Chan Chok Ki
PR HE %

Dr. Ma Chi Kit

R G

Mr. Ho Ka Ho
[IPE s

Employees of the Group
AR

Exercisable at the end of the year

R T

Weighted average exercise price

-39 17 6 (H

Date of grant

gibpm

12 April 2001
SR
12 April 2001
“BF—EA R
12 April 2001
SRR

12 April 2001
SEFF WA R

Exercise
price per
share

IR AT B
HK$
#T

No options had been exercised since the date of grant. At 30

June 2011, the number of shares in respect of which options

had been granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme represents 0% of

the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

23. B HET S ()

() R U SBC R ) (I OB i D B it ) )
(%)
FREHEWME = F——FAA =T H I
A1 BE TN AR 9 478 I i B RO RE R B AR A F 2
F BB 2 SR B R o

Balance at Lasped Balance at
1 July during 30 June

2010 the year 2011
REF—F4 REF——4
tH—H AAZTH
25t T4 BE W 3 25k
90,000 (90,000) —
72,000 (72,000) —
68,200 (68,200) —
230,200 (230,200) —
58,600 (58,600) —
288,800 (288,800) —
HKS$12#¢ HKS12 #7C NARER

B U S Sl 20 R AT o A

——4ENH

= MR B R R

2 B HEW R 2 B R AL A AR FE

BT
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

(ii)

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR 7 B4 FR A 7]

Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the
%2003 Option Scheme”)

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 28 October 2003, the 2003
Option Scheme was adopted to recognise and motivate the
contribution of the employees and to provide incentives and
help the Company in retaining its existing employees and
recruiting additional employees for a term of ten years. The
Board of the Company may at its discretion grant options
to any employees, including Executive and Non-Executive
Directors, advisers, consultants, agents, contractors,
customers and suppliers of the Group to subscribe for shares
in the Company. Option may be granted at a consideration of
HKS$1 and should be accepted within 5 business days from
the date of grant. The option granted is exercisable upon
acceptance of and payment of consideration by the grantee
and have a duration of 10 years from their respective vesting

dates.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted cannot exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company on 28 October 2003. No option shall
be granted to a grantee if the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be
granted under the 2003 Option Scheme in any twelve months
period up to and including the date of grant to such grantee
would exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company

for the time being in issue.

The subscription price shall not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Daily Quotation Sheet on the date of grant, which must
be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Daily Quotation Sheets for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant;
or (iii) the nominal value of a share. Without prejudice to the
generality of the above, the Board of the Company may grant
options in respect of which the subscription price is fixed at

different price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 M B8t & Wk

For the year ended 30 June 2012 % —F— "4F/XH =1 H (L4F

23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED) 23, JJBCHE T (1)
(ii) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the (i) MZFZEAETH N H RS2 0B hE
“2003 Option Scheme”) (continued) FHE ([ =R =AM BRE ST ) (4)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s TEBRESRE T — F N _E——4F
share options under the 2003 Option Scheme during the years ANA=Z1THIEFEERNALFRRE-ZZ
ended 30 June 2012 and 2011: AT PR R R ) 2 W B RE S B R
Exercise Balance at Exercised Balance at Exercised Balance at
price per 1 July during the 30 June during the 30 June
Directors of the Company Date of grant share 2010 year 2011 year 2012
e S 23 “E e St
tH—H AA=1H A=TH
AR BipM B BATHE B ZER RN 28 R R Z 58k
HK$
BT
Prof. Chan Chok Ki 4 August 2004 2.9 45,000 — 45,000 — 45,000
BRAIEEHIR ZEZNENHMA
23 June 2010 3.98 90,000 — 90,000 — 90,000
“E-REAAZTEN
Dr. Ma Chi Kit 4 August 2004 2.9 36,000 — 36,000 — 36,000
B ZEZNENAMA
23 June 2010 3.98 90,000 — 90,000 — 90,000
“E-REAAZTER
Mr. Ho Ka Ho 4 August 2004 2.9 34,000 — 34,000 — 34,000
MRZERAE ZERZNENRMA
23 June 2010 3.98 90,000 — 90,000 — 90,000
“Z—FERXA-T=H
385,000 — 385,000 — 385,000
Employees of the Group 4 August 2004 2.9 4,000 — 4,000 — 4,000
KEREE ZEZNENAMA
23 June 2010 3.98 60,000 (24,000) 36,000 — 36,000
“E-REAAZTER
449,000 (24,000) 425,000 — 425,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 425,000
ST TATME
Weighted average exercise price HK$3.693#7C HKS$3.98 %7 HK$3.68L  NANEA HK$3.68#C
IIHETI 7 AR
The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately E FRNAE NN A R F R
before 4 August 2004 and 23 June 2010 (date of grant of ANAZ =0 (Rl R 2 520 B H1)
the above options) were HK$2.9 and HK$3.98, respectively. A4S 2 7] e A 2 Wil 48 2% 2.9 W ot & 3.98
At 30 June 2012, the number of shares in respect of which WL RZFE—ZHFANA=TH o Rl
options had been granted under the 2003 Option Scheme CRT AR T B R R
represents 4.7% (2011: 4.7%) of the shares of the Company Z B A BOE G A R A B B AT A
in issue at that date. ZAT% (ZF——4 1 4.9%) °
In respect of the share options exercised during the year MR EF——FANH =T HIEEER
ended 30 June 2011, the weighted average share price at the T 2 BEIAE T 5 - A AT H 2 B £
dates of exercise was HK$5.39. FEIATAEAE 2 5.39 WG ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

24. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 24, BEEBIHEAM
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets NE B AEAAE B R AR - EERR 2 E AR
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior JE R IE £ 05 N S H R B R
years:
Accelerated Capitalised
tax development
depreciation costs Tax losses Total
I BT R AE A Be I i 1 A5t
HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T T T T
THE GROUP A4
At 1 July 2010 W_FE—FEELH—H 128 271 — 399
Charge to profit or loss A R A TR 7 93 — 100
At 30 June 2011 R _E——FRNH=1H 135 364 — 499
(Credit)/Charge to profit B (FEA) /B
or loss (65) 89 (523) (499)
At 30 June 2012 R _Z-—4EANH=ZTH 70 453 (523) —
At 30 June 2012, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately W oFE—THFENAZ=+TH > ALHEA A
HK$11,637,000 (2011: HK$5,542,000) available for offset against A 1K 85 A 2R R B 2 v ok ) B T 1R A0 A
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect 11,637,000 % JC(— % — — 4F © 5,542,000 %
— o - N
of HK$3,171,000 (2011: Nil) of such losses. No deferred tax asset TG) o AR AR B CBRAT BBl 4 23,171,000 7

JO( & —— 4 ) R IR IE BT E B o i
A AR BETE T AR A A IR > koIl 41 st A B s 4R
T Z 8,466,000 # 7T (~E ——4F : 5,542,000

has been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$8,466,000
(2011: HKS$5,542,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit

streams. Included in the unrecognised tax losses are losses of Ve IC) FE B B IE G A o ok FE R BLE
approximately HK$2,222,000 (2011: HK$2,156,000) that will 86 45 5 18 492,222,000 7 0 (= & — — 4F
expire in 2016 through 2017. The remaining tax losses may be 2,156,000 #570) > M _FE—ANFEE_F—L
carried forward indefinitely. EEFII o fR T B TELES 8 AT T e PR A At o
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4 N H =+ HIEF %

25. RESERVES 25, flfE
Share
Share options Retained
premium reserve profits Total
JBe 3tk 6 U VB e Aol A B A st
HKS$°000 HKS$000 HK$°000 HK3$°000
TFi#Eor FitEor Ti#IT Ti#EoT
THE COMPANY A 7]
At 1 July 2010 i —E—FELH—H 21,646 1,102 1,641 24,389
Profit and total comprehensive =4 & Fi| {1 K 4= T Ut
income for the year AaEE — 4 4
Issue of shares upon exercise 17 fiff % % IRy 2547 A7
of share options (80) — 91
At 30 June 2011 B _FE——FNH=1H 21,817 1,022 1,645 24,484
Loss and total comprehensive AS4F [ Ji5 18 & 4 1 57
expense for the year HaER — (177) (177)
At 30 June 2012 R_F—-—4EANHA=1H 21,817 1,022 1,468 24,307
26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 26. BRI

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme (“MPF Scheme”) registered under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is
to make the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce contributions payable in future
years.

The employees of the subsidiary in the PRC are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiary is required to contribute 8% of the
basic salary of its employees to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit is to make the specified contribution.

In addition to the participation in the above retirement benefit
schemes, the subsidiary in the UK is required to make National
Insurance Contributions for certain of its employees in the
UK based on applicable rate in accordance with the relevant
government regulations.

The total costs charged to profit or loss of approximately
HK$657,000 (2011: HK$566,000) represents contributions payable
to these schemes by the Group in respect of current accounting
period.
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4F N H =+ H L4

27. OPERATING LEASES 27. WEBMLHLKYE
The Group
AR
2012 2011
-4 —E— i
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T#T T T
Minimum lease payments made under AR AR BE N AR YR A B 2
operating leases in respect of premises 2 BT A 2 A
during the year FAA)FH 4 1,568 1,474
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for R AR > AR F A B 3E 2 R AT B 58
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating “a AHL 4 T 2B A AR 20 S A 2 e ARAH 49 FH 4 2 AR A
leases in respect of premises which fall due as follows: AN FH BE
The Group
% 3L |
2012 2011
it S —E -4
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T#x THT
Within one year — 4R 615 1,316
In the second to fifth years inclusive RS (HRMAAEEREAEN) 778 391
1,393 1,707
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group K8 FH A9 FH 4 16 A S [ s BE A S ) SE AN 2 A
for its office premises. Leases are negotiated for an average term of & o WROE AT I =4 > A A T =
three years and rentals are fixed for an average of three years. AR [E B AN o
The Company has no significant lease commitments at the end of AR AR > A ] Sl 4 TR FH B AR o

the reporting period.
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 # % —F— "4F N H =+ H L4

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 28. WHEALZY
The Group
A 4 18
2012 2011
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
T#x T
Service fee to City University MEAPNE S AN 65 25 26
CityU Enterprises Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of City F5 4 Etin City Limited (4% 22 7] 2 & 2 )
University, holds a 30% interests in Etin City Limited, a substantial 30% Wt Z SR A ZEA BR A7) A kT KB 2 4
shareholder of the Company. EME AT e
Compensation of key management personnel B33 NP 1]
The remuneration of Directors and other members of key A oA A BRI R
management during the year were as follows:
The Group
> 3L |
2012 2011
S gk
HKS$’000 HK3°000
T F T
Short-term benefits JL 014 A 4,550 5,603
Post-employment benefits il e £ A ) 36 36
4,586 5,639
The remuneration of Directors and key executives is determined by N FEEAAWRA G 24T d T A ik
the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of 2 B A R TGS R E o

individuals and market trends.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY W% b2

RESULTS
eS|

Revenue

Profit/(Loss) before taxation

Income tax (expense)/credit
Profit/(Loss) for the year
Attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

67 K £ 43

Total assets

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Non-controlling interests
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A

BRBLRT AR, (E518)
JRAHBE (i)

AR (E51R)
BB REA

E/NEIE ZE DN
F 4 SR 2

ZS/NGIE 2N
JEAL 2t 4
FF f2e SO 2
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Year ended 30 June
BREANH=THIL4EE

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
SEFNE CRENE CF-FE CF o R4
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
T T F#T T T T T F#x
62,898 52,502 50,616 45,693 37,425
4,638 1,690 2,074 1,319 (6,744)
(620) 86 (542) (140) 498
4,018 1,776 1,532 1,179 (6,246)
3,997 1,874 1,525 1,206 (6,182)
21 (98) 7 27) (64)
4,018 1,776 1,532 1,179 (6,246)
At 30 June
RAH=1H

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
SEFNE CEFNE CFCRE CF o SR-OA
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
FiBT Fil T T 7T Tz T#x
40,773 39,642 43,684 45,240 38,382
(5,577) (4,520) (5,288) (3,967) (4,539)
35,196 35,122 38,396 41,273 33,843
35,361 35,389 38,537 41,450 34,078
(165) (267) (141) (177) (235)
35,196 35,122 38,396 41,273 33,843
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